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From: Dfl Rivers Omagh

Sent: 14 November 2022 12:08

To:

Subject: Diverted Water Course Dirnan Road Cookstown

Grid Ref
FAO
RE

oo I

DIVERTED WATERCOURSE DIRNAN ROAD, COOKSTOWN

Thank you for your correspondence dated 27 October 2022 regarding the flooding issue at Dirnan Road, Cookstown.
There has been an ongoing family dispute regarding land ownership at this site. As far as | can establish the dispute
has now been resolved and the landowner is Mr .l am now in the process of starting the
enforcement route under schedule 5 of the drainage (Northern Ireland) Order 1973 with Mr-. | hope this
will lead to remedial works being carried out resolving the issue

| trust you find the foregoing helpful and if you require any further information or clarification please contact me at
rivers.omagh@infrastructure-ni.gov.uk quoting the above reference number.

Yours sincerely,

Lands Officer (Omagh) | Omagh Area Office | 3a St Julians Road | Omagh | BT79 7HQ]|
Tel: 028 8225 4900 | Email: rivers.omagh@infrastructure-ni.gov.uk
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| found this previous correspondence re drainage issues on Dirnan Road, Churchtown. Within the last week we have
received 3 complaints from a_ relating to this water emanating from- land and which is
ponding significantly at his new property further down the road (Nc-). Having seen the photos provided by Mr

| do have some sympathy with him.

Can you please investigate these issues again asap and let me know of the outcome.

Regards,

Dfl Roads
Mid Ulster North Section

From: Rivers Omagh
Sent: 26 February 2015 09:15

Subject: : Diverted Water Course Dirnan Road Cookstown

Dear Sir

Over this past two years there has been concerns raised at various times by Transport NI,PSNI,and members of the
public regarding the dangerous conditions on the Dirnan Road due to flooding. The flooding was caused by a
watercourse overflowing into the road. | discussed the problem with and who are
the landowners concerned and they both carried out works to alleviate the problem. The most recent works were
carried out by_ in 2014 and since then the road has not flooded. | carried out an inspection of the
site on 24 February 2015 as a result of a complaint from regarding silt and water being washed
across part of his property as a result of the diversion carried out by .I noticed a small
amount of gravel at the entrance to Field but | am satisfied that the watercourse in

is free flowing and is not in need of maintenance at this stage. | will monitor the situation in the future

and if the watercourse is in need of maintenance | will instruct_ to do so.

Lands Officer
Rivers Agency Omagh

Sent: ebruary 512:35

To: Rivers Omagh
Subject: Diverted Water Course Dirnan Road Cookstown

Gents

We have been contacted by an of Dirnan Road, about an ongoing problem to do with drainage.
This problem appears to be a family dispute and from your department had dealt with the last
problem with water here and did seem to have the problem solved.

However_ is now alleging that since that, a water course on his property has been diverted, resulting
in water and silt being washed across part of his property.

Could you again investigate and see the problem is.



Thanks

!oo!stown !ection

2nd Floor | Molesworth Suites | Molesworth Place | Molesworth Street | Cookstown | BT80 8NX
Tele: 028 8675 7600
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Mr 3a Saint Julians Road
HlDirman Road, Lisnamallard
Cookstown, Omagh
Co Tyrone Co Tyrone
BT80 9XL BT79 7HQ
Tel 028 8225 4900
Rivers.omagh@’infrastructure-
ni.gov.uk
Our Ref IN1-22-17250
Date 13 November 2022
Dear Sir
Schedule 5

DRAINAGE (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1973

1.

e

Dfl Rivers is part of the Department of Infrastructure. The Department is the
statutory drainage and flood defence authority for Northern Ireland. Under
the terms of the Drainage (Northemn Ireland) Order 1973 the Department
has discretionary powers to administer enforcement procedures to protect
the drainage and flood defence function of all watercourses.

A recent inspection of the section of culverts marked A-B and coloured blue
on the attached map has indicated the following problem:

The watercourse in question is in need of maintenance so as to allow free
flow of water.

As this watercourse flows through your land and is not designated, under
Schedule 5 to the Drainage (Northern Ireland) Order 1973. ltis your
responsibility to maintain the watercourse in such a way as to ensure a free
flow of water in the watercourse.

To comply with the terms of the Drainage Order, you are required to carry
out the following work:

To abate the nuisance maintenance in the form of scouring and cleansing
needs to be carried out to allow free flow of water.
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You should arrange to have this work carried out within 28 days from the
date of this letter. A further inspection will be carried out when this period
has expired. If the work has still not been completed, the Agency will
consider instigating legal proceedings.

5. A copy of Schedule 5 to the Drainage Order is enclosed for information.
Please contact me if you are unclear on any point and need further
information or guidance.

Yours sincerely

Lands Officer

’f: INVESTORS
IN PEOPLE
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SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE 5 Articies 8(4), 23(1) and (4] and 24

DUTIES OF OCCUPIERS WITH RESPECT TO UNDESIGNATED WATERCOURSES, ETC.

1. Subject to paragraphs 2 and 3, the occupier of any land on or through which an undesignated
watercourse runs, or of which such a watercourse forms a boundary, shall so scour out and cleanse
and maintain the portion of the watercourse running on or through, or bounding, the land occupied
by him that the efficiency of the watercourse, for the due discharge of any water that may flow into
it, is not impaired by reason of any act or omission of his or of anyone acting under his authority.

2.—{1) Where an undesignated watercourse forms a boundary between land in the occupation
of different persons, the liability of each person under paragraph 1 shall extend only so far as the
middle line of the watercourse.

(2) Sub-paragraph (1) shall apply whether the bed and soil of the watercourse is owned by one
only of the persons mentioned in that sub-paragraph, or partly by the one and partly by the other,
or by some other person, or partly by that other person and partly by one or both of the persons
mentioned in that sub-paragraph.

3. This Schedule shall not be construed as imposing any obligation on an occupier of land in
respect of an undesignated watercourse that does not perform any function connected with the
drainage of that land, but where—

(a) any other person is—
(i) required by paragraph 2 to scour out, cleanse and maintain any part of a watercourse
mentioned in that paragraph; or
(i) prejudicially affected by the inefficiency of such a watercourse; and

{b) the Ministry, by notice in writing served on that occupier, requires him to permit that other
person to enter on the land and to carry out, in relation to the watercourse, such works as
may be specified in the notice;

the occupier shall comply with the requirement; and an occupier may, afier such compliance, recover
from the person concerned the amount of any damage suffered as a result of his compliance.

4. The Ministry may at any time, by a notice in writing served on the occupier of any land, require
him to scour out and cleanse, or, for the purpose of maintenance, to carry out any work specified in
the notice in relation to, so much of an undesignated watercourse as runs on or through, or bounds,
land occupied by him; and, subject to the provisions of this Schedule, the occupier shall, within such
time as may be specified in the notice, comply with the requirements of the naotice.

5. Any notice under paragraph 4 shall—

(a) specify inreasonable detail the works that the Ministry considers necessary for the purpose
of complying with the requirements of the notice; and

(b) state the right of the person on whom the notice is served to send to the Ministry an
objection to the notice.

6. When a notice under paragraph 4 has been served on a person, the following provisions shall
have effect—
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(a) that person (in this paragraph referred to as “the objector™) may, within twenty-one days
after the service of the notice on him, send to the Ministry an objection in writing to the
notice;

(b) every objection shall contain a full statement of the grounds on which the objection is
based;

(c) the Ministry shall consider every such objection, and shall either—
(i) notify the objector that the Ministry has withdrawn the notice; or
(i1) serve upon him a further notice—
(A) setting out the grounds for the rejection, in whole or in part, of the objection;

(B) requiring him to carry out the works specified therein (being either the
works required by the notice under paragraph 4 or such variation of those
works as the Ministry considers fit, having regard to the objection) within
such time as may be specifted in the notice; and

(C) stating his right of appeal under sub-paragraph ( d),

(d) ifan objector on whom a notice has been served under sub-paragraph ( c)(ii) gives to the
Ministry, within twenty-one days of that service, a written statement of his intention to
appeal and specifies in that statement the ground on which the appeal is to be brought,
the objector may appeal to the county court for the division in which the land, or any part
thereof, occupied by him, being the land on or through which the watercourse runs, or to
which it forms a boundary, is situate, on any ground specified in the objection mentioned
in sub-paragraph ( @), and the court, on the hearing of the appeal, may confirm or annul
the notice, or vary any requirement thereof.

7. If, within the specified time, an occupier of fand has failed to comply with a notice under
paragraph 4 or 6( ¢)(ii}—

(a) the Ministry may take such action and execute all such work as the Ministry considers
necessary for carrying out anything required by the notice, and, for the purposes of this
paragraph, may do anything that it is empowered to do by Article 14 or 21 to do in the
carrying out of a drainage scheme or by way of repair and maintenance of a designated
watercourse; and

(b) the Ministry shall recover from the occupier the expenses incurred by it in carrying out
the work mentioned in sub-paragraph ( a).

8. In paragraphs 7 and 9, “specified time” means—

(a) in relation to a notice under paragraph 4, where objections are not sent under paragraph
6( a), such time as is specified in the notice;

(b) in relation to a notice under paragraph 6( ¢)(ii}, where the person on whom it is served
does not appeal to the county court against the notice or where, having so appealed, he
does not proceed to have his appeal duly heard and determined by the court, such time as
is specified in the notice, or such longer time as the Ministry may specify in writing;

(¢) inrelation to a notice as respects which an appeal has been duly heard and determined by
the county court, such time after the confirmation or variation of the notice as the court
directs.

9. If a person on whom a notice has been served under this Schedule fails to comply with the
notice, then—

(a) inthe case of a notice under paragraph 3, on the expiration of any time stated in the notice;
or

(b) inthe case of a notice under paragraph 4 or 6( )(ii), on the expiration of the specified time;
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unless, before any such expiration, the notice has been withdrawn by the Ministry, he shall be guilty
of an offence and shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding|[™ level 3 on the
standard scale] and to an additional fine not exceeding £5 for every day during which the offence
continues.

Annotations:
F1 1984 NI 3

10. Nothing in this Schedule shall affect the right of every person to recover under the terms of
any covenant, lease, trust or contract the amount of any expenses incurred by him under the foregoing
provisions of this Schedule, or recovered from him by the Ministry.

11. Where a person has, in order to comply with the requirements of this Schedule, scoured out
and cleansed any watercourse, it shall, in any proceedings taken against him under any statutory
provision relating to fisheries in respect of any injury or disturbance thereby caused to any spawn,
smolts or fry of any kind of fish, or to any spawning bed, bank or shallow, be a good defence to
him to prove—

(a) if the watercourse was scoured out and cleansed in accordance with a notice under
paragraph 4 or 6{ c){ii) and the notice included directions for the purpose of avoiding such
injury or disturbance, that those directions were complied with; or

(b) in any other case, that such injury or disturbance was unavoidable.

12. In this Schedule—

“construction” includes any embankment, wall, valve or sluice connected with a watercourse,
and also includes any fencing or other erection or thing interfering, or likely to interfere, with
the free flow of the watercourse;

“scour out and cleanse” includes the cutting, topping or removal of any tree, the removal of
any obstruction, construction, accretion, silt, deposit or fall, where such removal is necessary
to restore the normal depth or width of a watercourse, and the repair and protection of any
bank or construction;

“undesignated watercourse™ means a watercourse that is not a designated watercourse;

“watercourse” includes a drain or sewer (not being a drain or sewer vested in [a sewerage
undertaker]), where the Ministry is satisfied that the source of contamination has been
eliminated from the drain or sewer, but, save as aforesaid, has the meaning assigned to it by
Article 2(2).

Annotations:
F2  WordsinSch. 5 para. 12 substituted {1.4.2007) by Water and Sewerage Services (Northern Ireland) Order
2006 (S.1. 2006/3336 (N.I. 21)), arts. 1(2), 308(1), Sch. 12 para. 10{4) (with arts. 8(8), 121(3), 307);
S.R. 2007/194, art. 2(2}, Sch. | Pt. Il (subject to art. 3, Sch. 2)
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